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DECISION 

'rhis n1atter \vas heard before the California State Board of Pharn1acy on April] 9, 
2007, in Sacran1ento~ California. Board ll1en1bers present and participating in the hearing 
\vere: \Villiam Powers, President; Dr. K.ennetb H. Schell, Vice President; Dr. Ruth JV1. 
Conroy; O. Tin10thy Daze; Stanley '0/. Goldenberg; Robert Graul; Dr. Clarence 1(. Hiura; 
Henry A. l-Jough; Dr. SusanL Ravnan; and Dr. Robert E, Swart. P,-obert \ValkeL 
/\dn1inistrative Lmv Judge, State of California, Office of Administrative l-Iearings, presided. 

Joshua A. Roon1, Deputy Attorney (Jeneral, appeared pursuant to CJovernrncnt Code 
section 11522, 

The petilioner. Chu I-lUll Vll. appeared in propria persuna. 

The mutter was submitkd on /\pril 19.2007. 

ISSUE 

Shu u 1d peti ti oller's eel'll J1 calc to practi ec pharm Dey be rei nstatecl? 



]:/\C'j't!/\I, j:1NI)lNC1S 

1,;/ ('!\( ;IU )1:\/) 

1, Un August 7 ~ 19~6~ the StDle i30Drcl elf Pharnlacy issued pharmacist license 
number RPH 3Sl72~ to the petitioner, Chu lluu \lu, 

2, In January of 1999, oner \,,'as convicted of a violatiDn 1g tJnited States 
Code section 1 1,2, aiding and abetting rnai] haucL '1'11e convic1ion was on a plea of guilty. 
'r11e court sentenced petitioner to 1110nths in prison and three years of supervised release, 
The cuurt al so assessed a penalty of $1 50. 

3. Petiti oner' s convieti on resulted 11'om incidents thL11 occurred bet \veen Jan uary 
of 1991 and Noven1ber of 1993. Petitioner was the pharrnacist-in-charge of the Ulric 
Pharmacy in San Diego. The owner of the pharmacy, petitioner, and others conspired 10 
subn1it fraudulent clainls to J\1edi-Cal, and J\1edi-Cal paid n10re than $1 60,000 on 
claims. 

4, Petitioner contends that in ract he did not particij>alt: in the conspirL1cy and 
did not in any crime. He he became suspicious that the o\vner or the pharmacy 
was . ng in f)'aud and told the owner that he did not want to \vork there any longer. 
Petitiuner. ne\'erlheless. continued Lo vvork at Ulric Pharnlacy and. \vith the OVlner. WelS 

with 111ai] haud. Petitioner said he pled guilty on the advice of his attorney but no\v 
that the allorney gave 11in1 poor advice. Petitioner says the o\vner the phar111acy had 

retained the attorney, and petitioner guesti 011S \vhether the attorney had petitioner's interest at 
heart Petitioner, of course, cannot collaterally aUack the conviction. I-Ie stands convicted. 

5. By an accusation dated January 19,2000, Patricia F. IIan'is, Executive Officer 
of the Boarel of PharnlClcy, alleged the federal conviction and sought discipline 
petitioner's license. 

6. Petitioner and the board entered into 21 stipulation pursuant 10 \vhich petitioner 
aclmilleclthc allegations in the accusation and the board revoked license. As a further 
stipulation, the parties agreeclthat, as a condition precedent to any petition 1'01' reinstatement 
or petitioner'S license. he was required to pay board $g.fJOO in cost 'rhe 
stipulated selllen1cnt and discipli order became clTccLive un [Vlareh 6.2001, 

7. l>eLilioner served the 1\\'0 ~T(lrs in prisun. ~mcl. un February 2. 2003. he 
sLiccessrLllh olllpkkd this three oj' supenised release. 

~, This is petitioner's secund petitiun to the bU:Jrd rClj reinsLale of his 
license. Ilis llrsl petition was derlecl July 15.2004. By a decisi()n elated Decernber 2g. 2U04. 
the buard clenicdthat peLitiun. 



g, Petiliuner's current petition for reinstatement is dated Deccnlbcr 12.2006, 
'1 'he heari in the present nlatter is on that petition. 

10, On Decenlber . 200Cl. petitioner paid the $BJ)OO in cust recovery, 

11, Petitioner is 75 ole!, llis 1l1ust recent empluyment as a pharrnacist WclS in 
19l)~. 

12. Pelitiuner has satisi~ed the board's continuing educG1tion requirenlcnts. 

] 3. In 2006 petitioner completed hours of board approved continuing 
education. 

14. Petitioner testified that, in addition to satisfying continuing education 
requirenlents, he subscribes to and studies a number of pharnlClcy journals. 

REIIABILITA nON 

15. Because petitioner insists he actually \vas not guilty of the crinle to \vhich he 
pled. he does not offer extensive evidence of rehabilitation. While he 111ay not collaterally 
attack the conviction~ it is not inappropriate few him to offer this explanation of the paucity or 
his evidence of rehabilitation. 

1(), There is evidence. ho\veveL that petitioner has m substantial 
toward rehabilitation. He completed his prison term and supervised release. It has 111ne 
years since petiLioner's conviction and 14 years since the incidents that rise to the 
conviction. II has been 1110re than four years since he c0111plcted his period of supervised 
release. And there is no evidence of petitioner's having engagecl in any other \vrongdoing, 
Petitioner is married and a young daughter. From his testimony; it appears that he has a 
stable fa1l1ily relationship. Petitioner and his ily live on his's lTloclest income. but 

. nevertheless. paid the boarcr s cost recovery. 

/j~Tn:,/\s or IU;C'()MMENDA'J'JON 

17. Viet 'f'huc Truong~ Pharm. D.: is (\ licensed pharmacist in California. Dr. 
Truong wrote a letler with a noLl' added to it indicating that it was wrillen on Novenlber 20, 
200C). He \vrote that petitioner is "a highly moLivated and quality-driven professional.'· Dr. 
Truong rccurnmends that pelitioner:s 1 be reinstated. 

1~, llil'll N is a Ii pharmucist in Calirorni~l. llc recommends that 
petiliuner's license reinstulccl ~llld descri petitioner as a perrect prufessional who is 
"C()llllllitlccl. dec.licClLed. and hardworki 



1C). (Jeurge vVinforcl Cole wrote an undated letter in \\'hich said he had knO\V11 

IJetiLiuner for five J\~r. Cole finds petitioner to be or good moral character \vrok 
that petitioner is always to help people understand how to care for ves. 

20. Kenneth A. l\~organ \vro1e a letter dated November 20.2006. He has kJl0\\/n 
ioner for lIve years. He wrote that petitioner is always willing to gi ve health advice to 

il'iencls and neighbors. J\lJr. 1v1 has a degree in electrical cngineering and has discussed 
scienLiflc subjects with petitioner. He wro1e that petitioner is knowledgeable and honest and 
a person or integrilY and good character. 

2 1 . AII four uf the above leuer writers were aware tha1 the buarcl had di sc ipI ined 
pl~litiuner's license. 

Petitioncr ulsu submitLec! a letter 11'om Albert L. Pi ioni. I)h.l) .. the (lssociute 
deun ol'the pharrnacy school hum which petitioner \vas graduated in 19~4. Dr.l>icchioni 

petitioner highly. The leller, hc)\vever, is dated 1984 and no bearing on 
petitioner: s rehabilitation. 

LEGAL, CONCLUSIONS 

1 . By reason of the nlatters set forth in Findings 15 through 21: it is deternlined 
that petitioner has nlade substantial progress to\vard rehabilitation and that it would not be 
against the public interest to issue a probationary license. Petitioner cOll1pleted his prison 
term and supervised release. It has been nine years since petitioner'S conviction and 14 years 
since the incidents that gave rise to the conviction. There is no evidence of petitioner's 
having engaged in any other wrongdoing. It appears that he has a stabl e family relationship. 
And \vhi Ie pctiti oner and his fam i Iy live on his \vi Fe's nlodesl incl)nH:~, he~ paid 
Lhe hClarcl's cost recovery. I~'inally. the letters of ITcomn1cnclutiun ~llT rCClssuri 

') 13\ reasun ui'the llltll1ers set forth in j:indi 12 through 1 it is detennined 
tl1<-lt petiLioner has StltisrUclorily mainLained his kno\vledgc as Cl phann;lcist. 

~). PcLitiuncr's license should be reinstated sub,iect tu dPpropriull' cunditions or 
prubati un. One appropri ale cund i Li on is that petiti oner take and pass th c Cal i1'urn ia Pharn1acy 
Jurisprudence ination. if one \vere to assunle th211 petitioner did not parLiciputc in 
the mail fraud, he. nevertheless. in elll .ous fuilure to discharge the 
responsi bil ity uf a pharmucisL- in-charge. AfLcr bccorn ing suspicious th at the o\vner of the 
pharn1 \VUS clcfl'a ud ing l\~ eeli-CaL peti Li oner contin ued to \vork at the pharm wi1hout 
noti(yi anyone. Petitiuner's failure to discharge his bilil)' wuuld been 
reprehensible nu InaUer how little money was illvol but it is worth noli that in this case 
a substcll1tial amount was involved. l\~cdj-CLll paid more than $] 60.000 on thc fraudulcnt 
claims. Thus: it is appropriuLe tu furLher assurunce that petitioner CUlT1C to 
understand the rcsponsi bi Ii ti es uf a pharmac is1. 



URDER 

J'hc peti1ion for reinstatemen1 is granted. Jf petitiuner satisJ1es all statutory anc! 
lator), requirenlcnts for of c\ 1 tlle board shall his license. 'fhe 

shall inlmediale ly be revoked. The revocation shall be stayed; ho\,vever, for 11 ve 
and peti1ioner shall be placed on probation on the following conditions: 

]. .Petitioner shall obey all state and federal laws and regulalions subslantially 
related to or the practice of phan11acy. Petitioner shall report any of' 
the Collov'v'ing occurrences to the board, in \,vriting, \vithin hours or sLlch 
occurrence: an arrest or issuance of a crirninal con1plainl for violation or any 
provision of the Pharrnacy Law; stale or federal food and laws, or state or 
federal controlled substances la\vs: a plea of guilty or nolo contendre in any 
state 01' federal crinlinal proceeding to any cr1n1inal complaint, inf'orn1ation, or 
indictnlent; a conviction of any crinle; discipline, citation, or other 
adnlinistrative action filed by any state or federal agency that involves 
petiti oner "s license or that is re Iated to the practi ce of phc1rrll dCy or the 
manul~lcturing. obtaini handling, distributing. billing fur. or I'DI' 

any drug. device. or controlled substance. 

J 	 Petiti oner shall report to the board quarterly. The report shall be made either 
ill 1)CrS()11 ()r ill clS clirectecl. I)etitic)11Cr sllclll stelle ltllCler lJe11211t)1 err 
pel:jury \vhcther there been c0111pliance \\lith all the tern1S and conditions of 
probation. If the final probation report is not nlade as directed~ probation shall 
be extended auto111atically until sllch tin1c as the final report is rnade and 
accepled by the board. 

3. 	 On receipt of reasonable notice, petitioner shall appear in person Cor intervie\vs 
'with the board on request at various intervals at a location to be detcrrnined by 
the board. Failure to appear for a scheduled intcrvic\v without priur 
not111cation to board slerf1' shall be considered a violation of probation. 

4. 	 Petitioner shall cooperate with the board's inspcctional and in the 
board's monitoring and investigation of petitioJier's compliance with the terms 
and cund i t ions 0 r his or her probaLi Oil. Fai Iure to com ply shall be cons idercd a 
\' i u I::\ t ion () rpro h cIt i un. 

). 	 Petiliuner shLlll provide e\idence ofellorls to Ilwinlllin skilllmd kn()wkdgc as 
iJ phannc\cisl as directed lhl' buard. 

(). 	 Petilioner shull nutilY all present and prospectiye crnpl urthis decision 
and the terms. c()nditions~ and restrictions inlposed em petitioner by this 
decision. \Vilhin 30 of the cffective date of lhis decision. ancl within 15 

of petitioner newemploym petitiuller shall cause his or 
her direct SlljiCrvisoL pharmdc . and/or owner to report to the 



board in \;\'riting acknuwl that the employer hets read this decision. If 
petitioner v'lorks for or is en1ployed by or through a phal'lTl employnlent 
serv ice. peti Li oncr must notify the direct supervisor. pharr11 ac 
and/or owner (1t every phclJ'lll oj' the terms Clnd conditions or this 1S]On In 

~l(h'~lI1ce of pctitiollcr's c()]nlncnci work at each ph~lrm(:lcy. "LrnploYlTlent" 
within the meani ul'this pn)\.' on shall include any rull-timc~ part-tiJTle. 
Lemporury. relic!'. ur pharrrlaey mLl11dgernent service as a pharlllllcisl. \vhcther 
petitioner is considered an employee or independent contractor. 

7. 	 Petitioner shall not supervise any intern phan11acist or perform o1't11e 
duties of a preceptor. Petitioner shall not be the pharmac' of any 
entity licensed by the board unless othen,vise specified in this order. 

8. 	 Petitioner shall pay the costs associated \vith probation ]nonitori as 
detern1ined by the board each year of probation. Such costs Sh~ll1 be payable 
to the board at the end of each year of probation. Failure to pay such costs 
shall be considered a violation of probation. 

9. 	 Petitioner shall~ at all tinles \vhile on probation, n1aintain an active, current 
license v"ith the board, including any period during \vhic11 suspension or 
probation is tolled. If petitioner's license expires or is cancelled by operation 
of law or othen-vise: on renevv'al or reapplication, petitioner's license shall be 
subject to all terms and conditions of this probation not previously satisfied. 

10. 	 r'ollowing the e rfective of this dec ision: should petit ioner cease practice 
due to retirement or health: or be othenvise unable to salisJ), the tern1S and 
conditions of probation. petitioner lllay lender his or her license to the board 
for surrender. The board shall have the discretion vvhethcr to grant the request 
for surrender or take any other action it dcen1s appropriate and reasonable. On 
formal acceptance of the surrender of the license: petitioner \vill no longer be 
subject to the terlllS and conditions of probation. On Dcccptance of the 
surrendeL petitioner shall relinquisll his or her pocket license to the board 
within] 0 days of notification by the board that the surrender is accepted. 
Petitioner lTlay not reapply for any license JJ'Ol1l the board for three years from 
the effective date or the surrcnder. Petitioner shallmcet all requirements 
applicable to the license sought as of the date the applicatiun for that license is 
submitted to the board. 

11. 	 Petitioner shall notilY the board in \vri within 10 days of change or 
en1pl ent. Said noti Ilcation shall include the reasons fur leav and/or the 
ucldress urlhe nt~w empluyer. supervisoL or U\\T1Cr und vvork schedule if 
known. Petitioner shtlll noti 1\ the hoard in wri withi 11 I () ur a c 
in name. rnaili ;Jddress. or phone number. 
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12. 


~,

I -I. 

14. 

15. 

Should petitioncL regardless uf resicit'ncy. for any reason cease practici 
phannacy I'or a nlininlUl1l of ~O hours per calcndar month in California, 
petitioner nlust notilY the board in writing within 10 clays of on of the 
practice of pharnlC1cy or the resu111ption of the practice or pharnlacy. SLlch 
periods time shall not apply 10 the reduction of the probation period. It is a 
violation of probation for petitioner's probation to re111ain tolled pursuant to the 
provisions of this condition for a period exceeding three on of 
pra.ctice" nleans any period of tin1e exceeding 30 clays in \vhic11 petitioner is 
not in the practice or pharmacy as deilned in Section 4052 or the 
Business and Prufessions Code for at least 80 hours a cal cndar 1110nt1'1. 

If petitioner \'iolates probation in any the buard. aner . ving petitioner 
noLice and an oppurtunity to be heard. ITlCl) revoke probation and carry out thc 
disciplinary oreler that was stayed. If a petition to revuke prubation or an 
accusation is filed against petitioner during probatiun. the board shall helve 
continuing jurisdiction, and the period of probation shall extended llnti I the 
petition to revoke probation or accusation is heard and .declo 

If petitioner has not conlplied \vith any ternl or condition of probation, the 
board shall have continuing jurisdiction over petitioner, and probation shall 
auto1l1atically be extended until all terrns and conditions have been satisflec1 or 
the board has taken other action as cleenlcd appropriate to treat the failure to 
conlp1y as a violation of probation~ to ternlinate probation, and to inlpose the 
penalty that \vas stayed. 

Petitioner shall take and pass the California Pharmacy Jurisprudence 
Exanlination (CPJE) as scheduled by the board the effective elate of this 
decision at petitioner's O\\1n expense. Jfpetitioner fails to take and the 
examination within six months after tIle effective of this decision, petitioner 
shall be suspended f)'om practice on wriuen notice. Petitioner shall not resume 
the practice or pharmacy unLil he or she takes and the CPJ I: al a 
subsequcnt examination and is notified. in writi that he or she has pas~;ecl 
the exam inati on. Dllri ng sllspens iun. peti li uner shull not en1cr an)' phanrl aey 
urea. During sllspensiurL petitiuner shall nul enter any portion urthe licensed 
prelll iscs u ra who 1 eS211cr. veterinary food-an imal drug retai I er. any uther 
distributur of drugs, any nlanui'acturer, or any place where dangerous drugs 
and devices or conlrolled substances are maintained. During suspension: 
peti lionel' shall nol p1'acti ce pharnlacy or do any acl j nvol' drug se I ecti on: 
selection of stock: manufacturing: con1pounding: clispens or patient 
consultation. During suspension. peLitioner shall not manage. administeL or 
be Cl consultant to any licensee of the board. During suspension: petitioner 
shall not have access to or control the orderi manufacturing or dispensing 
of and controlled sLlspension. petitioner 

1 not activity tha1 requires the prof onal judgment of a 
pharmacist. suspension. petitiuner shall not direct or control any 
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aspect or the practice of pharn1acy. During suspension~ petitioner shall not 
perrorn1 the duties of a pharn1acy technician or an exen1ptee for any entity 
licensed by the board. Subject to the above restrictions, petitioner n1ay 
continue to own or hold an interest in any pharn1acy in vvhich he or she holds 
an interest at the tin1e this decision becon1es effective unless othervv'ise 
specified in this order. Failure to take and pass the exan1ination within one 
year of the effective date of this decision shall be considered a violation of 
probation. Suspension and probation shall be extended until petitioner passes 
the exan1ination and is notified in writing. 

16. 	 On petitioner's successful c0111pletion of probation, his or her license will be 
fully restored. 

DATED: May 31, 2007 

Effective Date: June 6, 2007 

WILLIAM POWERS 
President 
California State Board of Phar111acy 
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BILL LOCKYER, Attorney General 
of the State of California 

LINDA K. SCHNEIDER, State BarNo. 101336 
Deputy· Attorney General 

California Department of Justice 
110 West "A" Street, Suite 1100 
San Diego, California 92101 

P.O. Box 85266 
San Diego, California 92186-5266 
Telephone: (619) 645-3037 
Facsimile: (619) 645-2061 

Attorneys for Complainant 

I 

BEFORE THE 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

In the Matter of the Accusation Against: 

ChuHuu Vu 
C/O Healthcare Pharmacy 
P.O. Box 712663 

San Diego, CA 921 71 


License No. RPH 39728 

Respondent. 

Case No. 2236-B 

OAH No. L-2000050335 

STIPULATED SETTLEMENT AND 
DISCIPLINARY ORDER 

IT IS HEREBY STIPULATED AND AGREED by and between the parties to the 

above-entitled proceeding that the following matters are true: 

PARTIES 

1. Complainant Patricia F. Harris is the Executive Officer of the Board of 

Pharmacy who brought this action solely in her official capacity and is represented in this matter 

by Bill Lockyer, Attorney General of the State of California, by Linda K. Schneider, Deputy 

Attorney General. 

2. Respondent Chu Huu Vu ("Respondent") is represented in this proceeding 

by attorney Robert F. Hahn, Law Offices of Gould & Hahn, whose address is 5801 Christie 

Avenue, Suite 385, Emeryville, CA 94608. 
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3. On or about August 7, 1986, the Board issued Original Pharmacist 

License Number RPH 39728 to Chu Huu Vu to practice pharmacy in California. That 

registration is in full force and effect until January 31, 2002. 

JURISDICTION 

4. Accusation No. 2236-B was filed before the Board of Pharmacy of the 

Department of Consumer Affairs ("Board") and is currently pending against Respondent. The 

Accusation, together with all other statutorily required documents, was duly served on 

Respondent on February 2, 2000 and Respondent timely filed his Notice of Defense contesting 

the Accusation. A copy of Accusation No. 2236-B is attached as Exhibit A and is incorporated 

herein by reference. 

ADVISEMENT AND WAIVERS 

5. Respondent has carefully read and discussed with his counsel the nature of 

the charges and allegations in the Accusation and the effects of this Stipulated Settlement and 

Disciplinary Order. 

6. Respondent is fully aware of his legal rights in this matter, including the 

right to a hearing on the charges and allegations in the Accusation, the right to be represented by 

counsel at his own expense, the right to confront and cross-examine the witnesses against him, 

the right to present evidence and to testify on his own behalf, the right to the issuance of 

subpoenas to compel the attendance of witnesses and the production of documents, the right to 

reconsideration and court review of an adverse decision, and all other rights accorded by the 

California Administrative Procedure Act and other applicable laws. 

7. Respondent voluntarily, knowingly and intelligently waives and gives up 

each and every right set forth above. 

CULP ABILITY 

8. Respondent understands that the charges and allegations in the 

Accusation, if proven at a hearing, constitute cause for imposing discipline upon his Pharmacist's 

license. 

9. Respondent admits the truth of each and every charge and allegation in 
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Accusation No. 2236-B. 

10. Respondent agrees that his Pharmacist's license is subject to discipline and 

he agrees to be bound by the Board's imposition of discipline as set forth in the Order below. 

CONTINGENCY 

11. \ This stipulation shall be subject to the approval of the Board. Respondent 

understands and agrees that Board of Pharmacy's staff and counsel for Complainant may 

communicate directly with the Board regarding this stipulation and settlement, without notice to 

or participation by Respondent or his counsel. If the Board fails to adopt this stipulation as its 

Order, except for this paragraph the Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order shall be of no 

force or effect, it shall be inadmissible in any legal action between the parties, and the Board 

shall not be disqualified from further action in this matter by virtue of its consideration of this 

stipulation. 

12. The parties agree that facsimile copies of this Stipulated Settlement and 

Disciplinary Order, including fa.csimile signatures thereto, shall have the same force and effect as 

the original Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order and signatures. 

13. In consideration of the foregoing admissions and stipulations, the parties 

agree that the Board shall, without further notice or formal proceeding, issue and enter the 

following Disciplinary Order: 

DISCIPLINARY ORDER 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Original Pharmacist License Number RPH 

39728 issued to Respondent Chu Huu Vu is revoked. Pursuant to Business and Professions 

Code section 4309, Respondent shall be prohibited from filing a petition for reinstatement of his 

license or applying for relic ensure by the Board for at least three (3) years from the effective date 

of this Order. Respondent must make full payment for cost recovery to the Board in the amount 

of $8,000.00 (Eight Thousand Dollars) and submit proof that full and complete payment has 

been made, as a condition precedent to any petition for reinstatement of his license or future 

application Respondent may make to the Board for relicensure by the Board. 

3 

http:8,000.00


---

510 428 2232 P.05Nov-OI-OO 03:52P GOULD & HAHN 
_ _ _ -,. - __• • _. ...~...... .......... U 1:::1 g-O t!urn; 
 "/02/00 2:41PM;~N259;~age 5120 

~ r:--. 
\~) ~) 

2 

3 

4 

S 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 ~ 
12 

13 

14 

15 

::
16 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

ACCEPTANCE 

I have eardully read the above Stipulated Settlement aM Di~iplinary Order, have 

fully discussed the terms and, conditions &ad otbtr matters contained tberein with my attorney 

Robert F~ HaIu,\, aod I underSlmd the e£fec:t this stipulalioD. -will have 011 my Pba.rmacisfs license. 

I enter into this Stipulated Settlement volurDrily:- knowingly and mtelligentJy and agree 10 be 

bound by the DUcipUnary Ordet and Decision of the Board of Pbarm.acy. 1furtbet agree that a 

facsimile copy of this Stipulated Setttement and Disciplinary Ordu, incl\X1ing fiM:simi1c 'copie$ of 

signahJl'eS. may be used with the same force and effec:t as the originals. 

DATED; A~ I f1; (~ . 
~ ~ ) ­

 ~::::::::>' am ROO vu  
Respondent 

J have read and fully discussed with Respondent Cbu Huu Vu the tem'JS and 

couditions and otb« ma~ers contained in the above Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order 

and approve itspm~ 

DATF..D: -L./..::....,'/~//~;7r-r~~..............-----­

-/ ~iL 
Attorney for RespoMetlt 

ENDORSEMENT 

The foregoing Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Orc.kr is hereby respectfully . 

submtued for C(lnsidention by the Board of Pharmaey of the Deparunent ofConsumer Mairs. 

DATED: I;t \:J , :l.000 
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BEFORE THE 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 


DEPARTMENT OF CONSUlVIER AFFAIRS 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 


In the Matter of the Accusation Against: 

ChuHuu Vu 
C/O Healthcare Ph8lmacy 
P.O. Box 712663 
San Diego, CA 92171 

License No. RPH 39728 

Respondent. 

Case No. 2236-B 

OAR No. L-2000050335 

DECISION AND ORDER 

The attached Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order is hereby adopted by 

the Board of Pharmacy of the Department of Consumer Affairs as its Decision in the above 

entitled matter. 

This Decision shall become effective on March 6, 2001 

It is so ORDERED February 5, 2001 .. 

EDAm OF P.9ARMACY 
DEPARIMENl' OF CINSUMER ~ 
s:rATE OF ~LIRJRNIA 

ROJ3ERI' H. ELSNER 

Board President 
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Accusation in Case No. 2236-B 




1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

, , 
, , 

BILL LOCKYER, Attorney General 
of the State of California 

LINDA K. SCHNEIDER 
Deputy Attorney General, 

State Bar No. 101336 
Department of Justice .,;. 

110 West A Street, SUite 1100 
Post Office Box 85266 
San Diego, California 92186-5266 
Telephone: (619) 645-3037 

Attorneys for Complainant 

BEFORE THE 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

In, the Matter of the Accusation 
Against: 

Chu Huu'Vu 
3156 Clairemont Drive 
San Diego, CA 92117 

License No. RPH 39728 

Hoang Mau Nguyen 
aka, Harry Nguyen 
7538 Clear Sky Road 
San Diego, CA 92120 

License No. TCH 9544 

Respondents. 

NO. 2 2 3 6 - B 

ACCUSATION 

Complainant Patricia F. Harris, as causes for 

disciplinary action, alleges: 

PARTIES 

1. Complainant is the Executive Officer of the 

California State Board of Pharmacy ("Board") and makes and files 

1 . 
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this accusation solely in her official capacity. 

- License Status 

2. On or about August 7, 1986, the Board issued 

Original Pharmacist-License Number RPH 39728 to Chu Huu Vu to 
1 

practice pharmacy in California. That registration is in full 

force and effect until January 31, 2002. Chu Huu Vu was the PIC 

of Ulric Pharmacy from October 10, 1991 to June 30, 1993, at 

which time he disassociated from Ulric Pharmacy.ll Chu Huu Vu 

was the PIC of Delta Pharmacy from November 17, 1993 until 

December 15, 1993, at which time he disassociated from Delta 

Pharmacy.?:.! 

3. On or about September 9, 1993, the Board issued 

Original Pharmacy Technician Registration Number TCH 9544 to 

Harry Hoang Mau Nguyen to act as a pharmacy technician in 

California. The registration is in full force until its 

expiration date of March 31, 2001. Hoang Mau Nguyen was an owner 

of Ulric Pharmacy from January 15, 1991 until October 19, 1993 

when he disassociated from Ulric Pharmacy. 

JURISDICTION 

4. This Accusation refers to the following statutes of 

the California Business and Professions Code ("Code"): 

1. Ulric Pharmacy was sold and no longer has a registration 
number subject to renewal. Therefore, pursuant to Code section 
11.8(b), no charges are made against Ulric Pharmacy in this 
Accusation. 

2. Delta Pharmacy was closed and no longer has a 
registration number subject to renewal. Therefore, pursuant to 
Code section 118(b), no charges are made against Delta Pharmacy 
in this Accusation. 

2. 
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A. Section 4300 provides, in part, that every license 

issued may be suspended or revoked.' 

B. Section 4301 provides, in part, that "the board 
.,. 

shall take actiQn against any holder of a license who is 

guilty of unprofessional conduct or whose license has been 

procured by fraud or misrepresentation or issued by mistake. 

Unprofessional conduct shall include, but is not limited 

to:" 

"(f) The commission of any act involving moral 

turpitude, dishonesty, fraud, deceit, or corruption, whether 

the act is committed in the course of relations as a 

licensee or otherwise, and whether the act is a felony or 

misdemeanor or not. 

"(1) The conviction of a crime substantially related to 

the qualifications, functions, and duties of a -licensee 

under this chapter. " 
c. Section 118(b) provides: 

"The suspension, expiration, or forfeiture by operation 

of law of a license issued by a board in the department, or 

its suspension, forfeiture, or cancellation by order of the 

board or by order of a court of law, or its surrender 

without the written consent of the board, shall not, during 

any period in which it may be renewed, restored, reissued, 

or reinstated, deprive the board of its authority to 

institute or continue a disciplinary proceeding against the 

licensee upon any ground provided by law or to enter an 

3. 
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order suspending or revoking the license or otherwise taking 

disciplinary action against the licensee on any such 

ground." .' 
D. 

\ 
Section 4307 provides: 

11 (a) Any person who has been denied a license or whose 

license has been revoked or is under suspension, or who has 

failed to renew his or her license while it was under 

suspension, or who has been a manager, administrator, owner, 

member, officer, director, associate, or partner of any 

partnership, corporation, firm, or association whose 

application for a license has been denied or revoked, is 

under suspension or has been placed on probation, and while 

acting as the manager, administrator, owner, member, 

officer, director, associate, or partner had knowledge of or 

knowingly participated in any conduct for which the license 

was denied, revoked, suspended, or placed on probation, 

shall be prohibited from serving as a manager, 

administrator, owner, member, officer, director, associate, 

or partner of a licensee as follows: 

(1) Where a probationary license is issued or where an 

existing license is placed on probation, this 

prohibition shall remain in effect for a period not to 

exceed five years. 

(2) Where the license is denied or revoked, the 

prohibition shall continue until the license is issued 

or reinstated. 00'" 

E. Section 125.3 provides, in part, that, "the board 

may request the administrative law judge to direct any 

4 0 
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licentiate found to have committed a violation or violations 

of the licensing act, to pay a sum not to exceed the 

reasonable costs of the investigation and enforcement of the 
.... 

case." 

5. This Accusation is also made in reference to the 

following statutes of the United States Code: 

A. Title 18 Section 1341 provides, in part, that: 

"Whoever, having devised or intending to devise any 

scheme or artifice to defraud, or for obtaining money or 

property by means of false or fraudulent pretenses 

places in any post office or authorized depository for mail 

matter, any matter or thing whatever to be sent or delivered 

by the Postal Service shall be fined under this title 

or imprisoned not more than five years, or both . II 

B. Title 18 Section 1342 provides, in part, that: 

"Wh~ever, for the purpose of conducting, promoting, or 

carrying on by means of the Postal Service, any scheme or 

device mentioned in section 1341 of this title or any other 

unlawful business, uses or assumes, or requests to be 

addressed by, any fictitious, false, or assumed title,~, 'name, 

or address or name other than his own proper name 

shall be fined under this title or imprisoned not more than 

five years, or both." 

C. Title 18 Section 1344 provides: 

"Whoever knowingly executes, or attempts to execute, a 

scheme or artifice ­

(1) to defraud a financial institution; or 

(2) to obtain any of the moneys, funds, credits, 

5. 
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assets, securities, or other property owned by, or under the 

custody or control of, a financial institution, by means of 

false or fraudulent pretenses, representations, or promises; 

shall be f~ned not more than $1,000,000 or imprisoned 

not more than 30 years, or both." 

D. Title 18 Section 1961(4) defines II enterprise 11 under 

Chapter 96 - "Racketeer Influenced And Corrupt 

Organizations, 11 as follows: 

II 'enterprise' includes any individual, partnership, 

corporation, association, or other legal entity, and any 

union or group of individuals associated in fact although 

not a legal entity." 

E. Title 18 Section 1962{d) makes it a criminal 

offense to conspire in any racketeering activity. 

F. Title 18 Section 1963 provides penalties for 

violation of section 1962 which include, a fine of not more 

than $25,000, imprisonment of not more than 20 years, or 

both, and forfeiture to the United States of any interest 

acquired or maintained in violation of section 1962. 

~.G. Title 26 Section 7206(1) provides that, 

"Any person who willfully makes and subscribes any 

return, statement, or other document, which contains or is 

verified by a written declaration that it is made under the 

penalties of perjury, and which he does not believe to be 

true and correct as to every material matter shall be guilty 

of a felony and, upon conviction thereof, shall be fined not 

more than $100,000 ($500,000 in the case of a corporation), 

or imprisoned not more than 3 years, or both, together with 

6 . 
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the costs of prosecution." 

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION 
.... 

_ RESPONDENT, CHU HUU VU 

[Section 4301(1) - Conviction of a Crime 

Substantially Related to the Practice of Pharmacy] 

6. A criminal indictment was filed against Chu Huu Vu 

and Hoang Mau Nguyen, inter alia, in the United States District 

Court, Southern District of California under case number 

97CR0934-K. The indictment was subsequently amended by a 

Superceding Indictment bearing the same case.number. 

7. Pursuant to that Superceding Indictment, on or about 

January 16, 1998 in the United States District Court, Southern 

District of California, respondent, Chu Huu Vu, pled guilty and 

was sentenced for violation of 18 USC 1341.2 [Aiding and Abetting 

Mail Fraud - Count 23, 24 and 25 of the indictment] . 

8. Respondent, CHU HUU VU was sentenced to the 

following: 

• 	 Penalty assessment of $150.00 pursuant to 18 USC 

3003 

• 	 Imprisonment of 24 months 

• 	 Upon release from imprisonment, supervised release 

for 3 years 

• 	 While on supervised release, not commit another 

federal, state or local crime and comply with the 

standard conditions adopted by the court. Pay 

restitution obligation remaining unpaid at the 

commencement of supervised release. 

7 . 
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9. The facts surrounding the conviction were: 

-From January 1991 to November 1993, Dung My Thi Nguyen 

and Due·Huu Nguyen were partners and true owners of Ulric 

Pharmacy, and ~ere co-signatories on the Ulric Pharmacy bank 

account. Hoang Mau Nguyen was a paper co-owner with Dung Thi 

Nguyen of Ulric Pharmacy, and he signed claim forms that were 

submitted to the Medi-Cal Program. Dat Tat Nguyen was the de 

facto on-site manager of Ulric Pharmacy, ·and he was responsible 

for reviewing the billing information entered into Ulric 

Pharmacy's computer, which in turn generated claims submitted to 

Medi-Cal. Chu Huu Vu was the pharmacist-in-charge (PIC) at Ulric 

Pharmacy, and was responsible for the dispensing and labeling of 

prescription.medications. 

10. Due Huu Nguyen and Dung My Thi Nguyen had 

ownership interests in Primary Medical Clinic, which referred all 

its prescriptions exclusively to Dan Rx and Ulric Pharmacies. 

11. Between January 1991 and November 1993, 

respondent, Chu Huu Vu, conspired with Dung My Thi Nguyen, Due 

Huu Nguyen, Dat Tat Nguyen and Hoang Mau Nguyen to submit 

fraudulent claims to the Medi-Cal program from Ulric Pharmacy. 

The claims were fraudulent in that they overstated the amounts of 

medications actually dispensed or prescribed for the patients. 

As a result of the scheme and conspiracy, through which Ulric 

Pharmacy fraudulently obtained from Medi-Cal more than $160,000, 

Medi-Cal sent the following checks through the United States mail 

to Ulric Pharmacy to pay for fraudulent claims: 

a. Check number 34359887, dated April 23, 1992 (as was 

further described in Count 23 of the Superceding Indict~ent) 

8 . 
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b. Check number 38057881, dated February 4, 1993 (as 

was further described in Count 24 of the Superceding Indictment) 

c. Check number 38192091, dated February 11, 1993 (as
fl. 

was further described in Count 25 of the Superceding Indictment) 
1 

12. Respondent, Chu Huu Vu, has subjected his license 

to discipline for violation of Code section 4301(1), as is more 

particularly set forth above, by suffering a criminal conviction 

for violation of 18 USC 1341.2 [Aiding and Abetting Mail Fraud ­

Count 23, 24 and 25 of the Superceding Indictment] which is a 

crime substantially related to the practice of pharmacy. 

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION 


RESPONDENT, HOANG MAU NGUYEN, aka HARRY NGUYEN 


[Section 4301(1) - Conviction of a Crime 


Substantially Related to the Practice of Phar.macy] 


13. A criminal indictment was filed against Chu Huu 

Vu and Hoang Mau Nguyen, inter alia, in the United States 

District Court, Southern District of California under case number 

97CR0934-K. The indictment was subsequently amended by a 

Superceding Indictment bearing the same case number. 

14. Pursuant to that Superceding Indictment, on or 

about January 16, 1998 in the United States District Court, 

Southern District of California, respondent, Hoang Mau Nguyen, 

aka Harry Nguyen, pled guilty and was sentenced for violation of 

18 USC 1341.2 [Aiding and Abetting Mail Fraud - Count 23, 24 and 

25 of the indictment] . 

15. Respondent, Hoang Mau Nguyen, aka Harry Nguyen, 

was sentenced to the following: 

• Forfeiture of $58,000.00 cash [jointly with co­

9. 
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defendant, Dat Tat Nguyen] or forfeiture of real 

property located at 7538 Clear Sky Road, San 

Diego, California 92120 

• 	 Penalty assessment of $200.00 pursuant to 18 USC 
\ 

3003 

• 	 Imprisonment of 14 months 

• 	 Upon release from imprisonment, Supervised Release 

for 3 years 

• 	 While on supervised release, not commit another 

federal, state or local crime and comply with the 

standard conditions adopted by the court. Pay 

restitution obligation remaining unpaid at the 

commencement of supervised release. 

16. The facts which gave rise to the conviction were 

as follows: 

From January 1991 to November 1993, Dung My Thi Nguyen 

and Due Huu Nguyen were partners and true owners of Ulric 

Pharmacy, and were co-signatories on the Ulric Pharmacy bank 

account. Hoang Mau Nguyen was a paper co-owner with Dung My Thi 

Nguyen of Ulric P~armacy, and he signed claim forms that we~e 

submitted to the Medi-Cal Program. Dat Tat Nguyen was the de 

facto on-site manager of Ulric Pharmacy, and he was responsible 

for reviewing the billing information entered into the Ulric 

Pharmacy's computer, which in turn generated claims submitted to 

Medi-Cal. Chu Huu Vu was the pharmacist-in-charge (PIC) at Ulric 

Pharmacy, and was responsible for the dispensing and labeling of 

prescription medications. 

17. 	 Due Huu Nguyen and Dung My Thi Nguyen had 

10. 
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ownership interests in Primary Medical Clinic, which referred all 

its prescriptions exclusively to Dan Rx and Ulric Pharmacies. 

18. Between January 1991 and November 1993, 

respondent, Ho~ng Mau Nguyen, conspired with others to submit 

fraudulent claims to the Medi-Cal program from Ulric Pharmacy. 

The claims were fraudulent in that they overstated the amounts of 

medications actually dispensed or prescribed for the patients. 

As a result of the scheme and conspiracy, Medi-Cal sent the 

following checks through the United States mail to Ulric Pharmacy 

to pay for fraudulent claims: 

a. Check number 34359887, dated April 23, 1992 (as was 

further described in Count 23 of the Superceding Indictment) 

b. Check number 38057881, dated February 4, 1993 (as 

was further described in Count 24 of the Superceding Indictment) 

c. Check number 38192091, dated February 11, 1993 (as 

was further described in Count 25 of the Superceding Indictm~nt) 

19. Between May 22, 1991 and March 31, 1992, 

respondent, Hoang Mau Nguyen, received $6,519 from the Employment 

Development Department of the state of California as unemployment 

compensation. During that time, however, respondent, Hoang~Mau 

Nguyen, worked at Ulric Pharmacy and received a salary of 

approximately $250/week. He never disclosed to EDD that he was 

employed by Ulric Pharmacy. Had EDD known that respondent, Hoang 

Mau Nguyen, was employed by Ulric Pharmacy and was receiving a 

weekly salary of approximately $250/week, he would have been 

deemed ineligible to receive the unemployment benefits. 

20. In September, 1992, respondent, Hoang Mau Nguyen, 

applied for a home loan from Great Western Bank to purchase a 

11. 




1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 
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application, respondent, Hoang Mau Nguyen, knowingly falsely 

stated that he had been employed by Dan Rx Pharmacy for three 
.... 

years as the "billing controller," and overstated his income. He 

also falsely stated that he had been in the pharmacy business for 

six years, when in fact he had only been in the United States for 

less than three years. 

21. Due Nguyen also signed Danh Nguyen's name on the 

loan application, purporting to verify that Hoang Mau Nguyen was 

employed at Dan Rx Pharmacy. 

22. As a result of the above false statements, 

respondent, Hoang Mau Nguyen, fraudulently received a loan in the 

amount of $157,000 from Great Western Bank. Had Great Western 

Bank known that these statements were false, it would not have 

funded the loan. 

23. Respondent, Hoang Mau Nguyen, aka Harry Nguyen, 

has subjected his license to discipline for violation of Code 

section 4301(1), as is more particularly set forth above, by 

suffering criminal convictions for violation of 18 USC 1341 and 

201
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342 [Aiding and Abetting Mail Fraud - Counts 23, 24 and 25~' 'of 

the Superceding Indictment] and 18 USC 1342 and 1344 [Aiding and 

Abetting Bank Fraud - Count 32 of the indictment] which are 

crimes substantially related to the practice of pharmacy. 

PRAYER 

WHEREFORE, complainant requests that the Board hold a 

hearing on the matters alleged herein, and that following ,said 

hearing, the Board issue a decision: 
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1. Revoking or suspending License Number RPH 39728 

heretofore issued to respondent, Chu Huu VUe 

2. Issuing an order prohibiting respondent, Chu Huu 
.,.' 

Vu, f:rom se-rving as a manager, administrator, owner, 

member, officer, director, associate, or partner of a 

licensee pursuant to Code section 4307. 

3. Revoking or suspending Registration Number TCH 95'44 

heretofore issued to respondent, Hoang Mau Nguyen, aka 

Harry Nguyen. 

4. Issuing an order prohibiting respondent, Hoang Mau 

Nguyen, aka Harry Nguyen, from serving as a manager, 

administrator, owner, member, officer, director, 

associate, or partner of a licensee pursuant to Code 

section 4307. 

5. Directing respondents, and each of them, to pay to 

the Board a reasonable sum for its investigative and 

enforcement costs of this action; and 

6.· Taking such other and further action as the Board 

deems appropriate to protect the public health, safety 

~.and welfare. 

DATED: II \'\ \00 

Patricia Florian Harris 
Executive Officer 
Board of Pharmacy 
Department of Consumer Affairs 
State of California 

Complainant 
03583110-SD1999AD0463 

13. 



